Boundary Section 2:
Black Park to Fleets Lane through the Fleets Estate
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Highlights
· This section forms the boundary between Rylstone and Linton and Cracoe parishes, starting in Black Park, a large upland field of rough pasture. 'Black Park' may be a colour name common on boundaries and often near coal seams. After Black Park, the boundary follows Whitaker Beck and then Ings Beck. The shape of the parish is at its narrowest here, with the Western boundary of Rylstone proceeding along Skirse Gill Beck.

· The area along the boundary is mainly rough pasture in the North and good pasture and meadowland in the southern stretch around Fleets House as old maps below show. The maps also show the considerable development that took place to the Fleets estate and its dwellings between 1838 and 1900.
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· This area of Rylstone is part of the Fleets Estate owned by the Maude and now the Butcher families. Fleets House, shown below, is a fine 19th century house, and an edition of Times Past recorded some of the happenings here.
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Reclaiming a Craven Estate from the Marshes.

Three Generations at The Fleets (continued)
|1t would not be right to conclude the telling of this Tale without expressing my admiration of the exceedingly
good work that was done by those who did the actual labour. They were faithful, reliable estate men who
could be trusted to build a stone wall , or lay a drain which would last a hundred years and probably twice that
time. Their names have been always held in respect and with pleasant memory by those who employed them”.
Col. Maude goes on to say:- I fear this type of workman is getting scarcer under the conditions of these times
and I deeply regret that the present system of education in our rural schools will make it impossible to replace
them.
T have been moved to write the above account by a talk on the WIRELESS by Augustine Birrill M.P on
“LOOKING BACKWARDS” in which he urged old people who were able to contribute to the history of their
younger days, to make public their recollections which might be interesting, while they were able to do so.-
The three generations of the Maude family residing at Fleets were:-
William- died 1860 aged 79 Abraham-died 1876 aged 63 William Wade-died 1933 aged 85
The Maude family were generous benefactors within the parish as their memorial inscription states. Of
Abraham is written:- From 1845, for 31years he worshipped near this place and was, by God’s grace enabled
to help in the re-building of this church ( i.e. St Peter’s, Rylstone) the building of the school and schoolhouse
|and of the rectory and in many other ways to aid the work of this parish.
The Fleets Estate is part of Rylstone Parish. In 1841 the population of Rylstone Parish was 121. The land of
the parish was divided as follows:- 5 acres— arable, 2095 acres— meadow and pasture, 101 acres- woodland,
849 acres —common land. 3050 acres in all.
For almost 90 years up to 1981, The Verity family farmed at High Fleets. The late Mr. William Verity
remembered the old field names around the farm. The three ficlds above the house were named GOOSE-
LANDS CROFT, GREAT GOOSELANDS and LITTLE GOOSELANDS, indicating their use in the past.
Col. William Wade Maude who inherited the estate from his father Abraham in 1876, added to the estate by
various purchases :- 1.Coxon’s Farm in Cracoe 18 acres 2. Town End Farm, Cracoe 18 acres. 3. The
Coonlands, Cracoe comprising48 actes of pasture land with various farm buildings. Finally, in 1927 he
purchased Blackhill, a pasture on the western boundary. In February 1933 he let the Home Farm to his most
efficient helper and man, James Mason who continued to farm it efficiently and well in accordance with the
old traditions. He altered Fleets House and was responsible for the building of Fleets Cottage, the design of
which was taken from the Crystal Palace Exhibition. He died at the age of 85 years, leaving his widow ( who
only survived him by six weeks ) and a grandson Mi-
chael William Vernon Maude, both his sons having
died of war wounds between 1917 and 1919.
In 1934, the estate was purchased by Col. G K Butcher
% and many improvements to the house, gardens, farms/
farm buildings and land took place over the next 15-20
o years.
2 In the garden, all the forest trees close to the house ,
- | together with the old holly fences were felled to let in
light and air. The old carriage drive of gravel in front
| of the house was converted into grass terraces with a
- = flagged path to the front door. Old ( stone ) carved

Fleets House J gateposts beyond the present gardens of Fleets House
| may be seen from Bordley Road looking to the right. It is thought these were erected there in the mid 19th
century and brought from Rylstone Church which was being

demolished at that time to be replaced by the present church.

It is interesting to note that in 1946/47 Col. Butcher records the purchase of Mr. David Wellock’s Ewe flock,
| then buying 12 Galloway— in calf cows from Scotland. In June 1947 a

Jersey herd was started by the purchase of 10 animals from Dr. Wheldon of Fencehouses , County Durham.
And so the story of the Fleets Estate continues, now in the hands of Mr. Stephen Butcher and his sons, JAMES |
and SIMON.

Developments made in the past 10 years include Office Units housing small businesses near Fleets House and
Sun Hill Farm and also the setting up of the Sunhill Centre offering a wide selection of outdoor activities

continued overleaf
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Three Generations at The Fleets ( continued ) |

Pictured left, three members of the Maude family,

possibly including William Wade Maude and

perhaps his wife playing Croquet on the front lawn of Fleets
House in the early part of the last century .

| Pictured above, Stephen Butcher with Bill Anderson and the
first three Charolais imported by Stephen in the 1960s

Pictured above left, is the Dining Room at Fleets House taken September 1932.

Pictured above right, is the Billiard Room at Fleets House also taken September 1932.
The gentlemen in the picture is Mr. Harold Thompson, the father of Eric Thompson of Cracoe
| Editor’s Note Our sincere thanks to both Eric Thompson and Stephen Butcher for their assistance in providing
information and photographs, which has made this feature possible.





image1.png
S le Earth Pro
File Edt View Jooks Add Help
¥ Search

¥ Places
4/ & dobbiaco

50 items from Layer

¥ Lavers
~ @S primary Datat
» 4@ Ihenew Google Eath

¥ Borders and Labels

R 30 Buildings
@

% Gallery
@ Global Awareness

: ; T
fok( Lida o >oogle Earth





image2.png
Reclaiming a Craven Estate from the Marshes
Three Generations at “The Fleets”

The following is an edited account of the history of The Fleets written by Col. W. W. Maude and

received after his death , by the Recorder of the Craven Museum. It was written expressly for publication.
This document relates to the year 1832 when Col. Maude’s grandfather inherited by will from his uncle, a
small moor land farm called FLEETS comprising 111 acres stretching from the moor land above to the val-
ley below. Apart from a few crofts near the farmhouse, the land was undrained, treeless, save for one old ash
tree. It was the wind-swept home of wild duck, curlew plover and snipe. There were a few fences of a
temporary character which had been erected about 1797 during the “ENCLOSURE”

In 1834 “SUN HILL” was bought thus adding 132 acres to the 111acres already owned by the Maude
family. Later four fields on the eastern border were acquired from the glebe of WIBSEY Vicarage ( 24 acres)
in 1871, four fields ( 40 acres ) were acquired by exchange from an adjoining owner on the west side, just
below Sun Hill Farm.

The Maudes drained the fields and channelled the water into

stone troughs which still run under the garden and also
planted large numbers of trees.

4 The 1838 tithe map for the Township of Rylstone

(see below left) shows a shelter belt east of the road to

Fleets, shrub slanting to both east and west of the house and a

plantation to the north of the service buildings.

Mr WILLIAM MAUDE is recorded as the owner and occu-
pier, and the house is described as :- ¢ house, barns, garden,
croft and plantation. The land to the west of the road was
shown as treeless fields so SHARE WOOD must have been
planted after 1838.

O [0 " William Maude’s first task of reclaiming this small property

e and making it fit for successful farming was to open up a stone quarry

z on the moor above out of which came the thousands of cart-loads of

stone required for the walling,draining, two houses and simple farm

“Ibuildings. There were six miles of stone walls erected to replace old

fences.

Gills were fenced off and planted with good timber trees.

Then followed the draining of the bog, or large marsh which covered

about 40 acres of the valley.

"/ In draining this bog the bones and antlers of deer were found and large

B logs of black oak. The whole bog area was cffectively drained to

/| become good grassland.

Before his death in 1860 William Maude had the satisfaction of

| establishing a herd of pedigree shorthorns on his moor land farm.

[ ~\ Following his death, his son Abraham Maude continued to deep

g 1838 N r(y |drain , tree plant and improve the land. He also did not live to see the
Rylstone Wiolp 12 kD) great improvement he had made in the appearance of the countryside

for he died in 1876, sixteen years after the death of his father.

Col. W. W. Maude continued to carry on the work begun by his grandfather and developed by his father.
In conclusion Col. Maude records in his documentation:-
“Three Generations at The Fleets,” that:-

“I'may say that one field of nine acres ( front meadow) which, before the work commenced, only carried a
few geese, has now an annual value of £ 3 per acre, and a field of 22acres ( pasture) valued at the time of the

exchange at an annual value of 2s-6d per acre, is now worth 30s per acre. ( happy day!)

continued across





